Question Set Two 
NASA Ames Solicitation for NNA06145270R

CEV Heat Shield Ablator Material Advanced Development Project Phase II
1. Q:  Can drawings and CAD files be delivered in IGES, STEP, or Catia formats in lieu of PRO/E native format?
A:  Pro/E is the preferred format for CAD data.  However, the contractor may request an alternative format.  IGES and STEP standard formats are acceptable.
2. Q:  For DR TPS-T-003 Material Property Database, are compression pad assembly component materials such as tension ties to be included as heatshield materials?  The Bidder’s Library CEV TPS Interface sheet indicates tension ties as “CEV” responsibility.

A:  Material properties data for tension ties are not required.  The material properties and constituents for primary TPS material used for the compression pad are required.
3. Q:  Relative to SOW paragraph 3.2.5.2, Preliminary Design of Carrier Structure and Attachment/Separation Mechanisms, how many NASA concepts are expected to be provided as GFI? 
A:  Two concepts are anticipated, one metallic and one composite.
4. Q:  Will any interface information be provided on the Service Module external structural relationship to the heatshield TPS including structural load transfer interface points or Outer Mold Line (OML) geometry in the area of the TPS?

A:  Yes, loads between the SM and the heat shield will be provided.  Also, the location, number and orientation of the contact points with the heat shield will be provided.
5. Q:  Can data table and figure text be presented in 8 point font?
A:  Yes, Diagrams, charts, and photographs may be reduced and, if necessary, run landscape or folded to eliminate oversize pages.  Text in diagrams, charts, and photographs shall be no smaller than Arial 8.  Diagrams, tables, charts, and photographs shall not be used to circumvent the text size limitations of the proposal.  The Government will not evaluate diagrams, tables, charts, and photographs smaller than Arial 8, but will return the pages to the offeror using the methodology stated above.  Fold-outs count as an equivalent number 8.5 X 11 inch pages.  Graphics may exceed the one-inch margin requirement.

6. Q:  Shall a tension tie be included as a component of a contractor supplied compression pad assembly as a component of the LDDU?

A:  This is not required, but the contractor may include a tension tie concept if desired. 
7. Q:  In the Hardware Requirements List (HRL) Section 3.0 c), please clarify the assumptions commensurate with the loads and compression area provided.  Do these loads assume a fixed quantity of compression pads; is this load assumed to be equally distributed on all compression pads?    Have the tension loads been determined?  Is a fixed preload assumed for the tension ties?
A:  The loads are commensurate with an assumed number of 8 compression pads.  Loads are the maximum encountered at any pad.  Not all pads encounter these loads.  Tension tie pre-loads are included.

8. Q:  Option pricing is requested for a series of TPS test coupons in Section B of the RFP.  What is the period of performance for these optional coupons?  Are they expected to be ordered and delivered during the basic period of the contract?
A:  Yes. If optional coupons are required, they are expected to be ordered and delivered during the basic period of the contract.  The period of performance for the optional coupons is during the basic period.
9. Q:  In the HRL, Section 1.0 MDU, a “Witness Plate” has been added to the scope.  This new HRL item is to be delivered “No later than three weeks after completion of the witness process”.    Please describe the witness process or provide a SOW/HRL reference for this activity.
A:  The witness process is the manufacture and assembly of any panels that cover the highly-curved shoulder region of the heat shield.

10. Q:  The HRL Appendix A (page A-13) paragraph 1.1.2 specifies a 2 inch thickness. This appears to conflict with the HRL for Coupons 4.3 and 4.4, requiring thickness sizing in accordance with Bidder’s Library requirement 9C.
A:  Thickness criteria No. 9C is a 2 inch thickness. 

11. Q:  The HRL Appendix A (page A-59 paragraph 1.3 specifies a 2 inch thickness, for the coupon. This appears to conflict with the HRL for Coupons 4.21, requiring thickness sizing in accordance with Bidder’s Library requirement 2B.

A:  The 2 inch thickness specified in Appendix A is correct.  The reference in the table for Item 4.21 is an error that will be corrected at contract award.

12. Q:  The HRL Appendix A (page A-27 paragraph 4.1. specifies the contractor is to provide 5.00 inch diameter model holders. Please provide model holder design requirements and responsibilities for HRL Coupon 4.8 at 5.00 diameter
A:  The contractor has the responsibility for the design and fabrication of the model holders for this test sequence.  The primary purpose of the model holder is to close out the edges of the interface being tested to prevent flow through the interface due to the steep pressure gradient from the front face of the model to the side of the model a gradient that is not representative of what will be experienced in flight.  Section 1 under Stagnation Heat Flux on page A-26 provides more details on the model and model holder design.  The model holder should be a material with the same or greater recession rate than the materials being tested.  NASA will provide the contractor with the hardware required for interfacing the models with the arc jet sting arm at contract award.
13. Q:  For arc jet test coupons requiring internal instrumentation, can the thermocouple plug material be made from the same ablator material, but a different lot than the ablator material of the coupon under test?
A:  The plug material should be fabricated from the same lot of ablator as the rest of the coupon being tested.  One of the objectives of the testing is to investigate the inherent variability in the materials performance.  If one lot of material were used to fabricate multiple TC plugs used in multiple different samples it would significantly diminish our insight into the inherent variability in the materials performance.  

14. Q:  What government agency (NASA or DCMA) will process government inspection letters of delegation for any work placed at subcontractors?
A:  NASA may choose to issue letters of delegation to DCMA to cover some activities.
15. Q:  Can the Past Performance volume include the full text of any collective bargaining unit agreements as a separate Appendix so as not to count against the page count limit?

A:  Collective Bargaining Agreements may be included as a separate Appendix and will not count against the page count limit.

16. Q:  Will the MDU Carrier Structure be mounted on a frame that can be used to lift the Carrier Structure from the Shipping container?  Will the MDU Carrier Structure be shipped at an angle for road clearance?  Will, it be shipped convex side up? When will the MDU shipping container drawings be made available to allow coordination for engineering of MDU GSE?
A:  The MDU carrier structure (CS) contract specifies that the MDU CS will be delivered with sub-structure and frame that can be used to lift and move the CS from the shipping container.  The MDU CS will be shipped at an angle for road clearances with the convex side up.  Drawings for the MDU CS shipping container, sub-structure and frame will be made available at or before contract award.
17. Q:  Please define “flight maximum diameter” in the Thickness Definition Table in HRL Appendix page A-2.

A:  The “flight maximum diameter” is the TPS thickness at the maximum diameter of the heat shield, in the shoulder region.
18. Q:  Please define “thermal response model heating environment” (9B, 9C) in the Thickness Definition Table in HRL Appendix page A-2.

A:  Sizing thickness 9B and 9C for the thermal response model environment is two inches.

19. Q:  Can NASA provide tabular data for all entry trajectory, heating, pressures and shear data in the Bidder’s Library to improve accuracy of internal analysis and reduce potential error?
A:  The data will be provided upon request after contract award. 

20. Q:  Please clarify the application of the CEV TPS Interfaces document in the Bidder’s Library.  Is this list intended to supersede SOW and HRL direction?  Does “SM Compression/Shear Pad Support” refer to mechanical load transfer/separation devices that would remain with the SM after separation?

A:  The TPS Interfaces document is meant to provide a notional listing of CEV subsystems that will interface with the TPS through mechanical loads or otherwise.  The SOW and HRL supersede the Interfaces document in the Phase II Library.

21. Q:  Have heatshield instrumentation requirements been defined for the flight heatshield?  Please provide scope of this effort and define responsibilities to allow planning preliminary design effort in this area.

A:  Instrumentation requirements will be provided after contract award.

22. Q:  The FFP and CP CLINS do not accommodate several Statement of Work paragraphs, for instance Program Management.  How does NASA intend for the Contractor to account for its labor for these areas.  Can a separate CLIN be established to accommodate this?  
A:  See RFP Amendment One
23. Q:  Page 3 of the proposal highlights refers the reader to Section F which indicates a 15 month pop versus the Project Milestone Schedule on page 17 of the Statement of Work which indicated Phase 2 ends on January 15, 2008 which would represent 16 months.

A:  January 15, 2008 is the currently projected end of Phase II, so the period of performance is approximately 16 months.  See RFP Amendment One.
24. Q:  Regarding Page B-1 Supplies / Services – For the deliverables falling under FFP Line item 4, can a total Price be provided for all deliverables, or is it required that they each be separately priced.
A:  “Other Firm Fixed Price Deliverables” on Line item 4, Page B-1, can be priced separately or as a total price.  See RFP Question Set One, Question # 1.
25. Q:  Are thermal and environmental seals located at the heat shield to backshell interface to be included in the TPS Material Properties Database (DR TPS-T-003)?  The language in the DR is ambiguous with respect to these items, but they are included as content in the Bidder's Library TPS Interfaces sheet. 
A:  Seal properties are not required, but may be included if desired.

26. Q:  The SOW, Section 3.1, pages 4-5, has several requirements for specific
management tasks to be performed. However, the Supplies/Services To Be
Provided, Section B.1, Pages B-1 to B-2, seems to provide line items only
for the Project Management Plan (3.1.1), the Monthly Status Reports (3.1.4),
and the Quarterly Review Documentation (3.1.3). Where are the other
Management Items listed in Section 3.1 as well as other requirements such as
the PDR expected to be priced?

A.  See RFP Amendment One.

27. Q:  The SOW, Section 3.2.5.2, pages 12-13, requires the contractor to

 " . . develop a preliminary design for the main seals, . . . " .  Where is this item expected to be priced?

A.  The Contractor may opt to perform main seal design work. In this case the design results shall be included in the Design Data Book. If the Contractor opts not to perform main seal design, NASA will perform the design and append it to the Contractor Design Data Book.

28. Q:  A TPS Subsystem PDR is listed in the Project Milestones, SOW, Section
4.0, Page 17. However, the Data Requirements List does not include any PDR
documentation nor does the Supplies/Services To Be Provided, Section B.1,
Pages B-1 to B-2, include the PDR. Is the PDR part of the program, and if
so, where is the PDR expected to be priced?
TPS Contractor participation in PDR is not required.  NASA will utilize TPS Contractor contract deliverables at PDR.
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